
COVENTRY BOARD OF EDUCATION  
APPROVED MINUTES  

MEETING OF THURSDAY, JUNE 30, 2011  
 
 
Members Present:  Cheryl Trudon, Chairman  
 Jennifer Beausoleil, Vice Chairman  
 Mary Ann Emanuele, Secretary  
 John Barrett (arrived 7:40 p.m.)  
 Mary Kortmann  
 Mark Malcolm  
 Eugene Marchand 
 
Administrators Present:  Dr. Donna Bernard, Superintendent  
    Gregg Blackstone, Business Manager  
 
Also Present: Barbara Trinks, PSSS Director; Paul Noel, Director of Physical Plant and 
Facilities; a community member; Mr. Pomeroy, Director of the Agricultural program at E.O. 
Smith, and several student representatives of the E.O. Smith Agriculture program.  
 
All motions are directed to the Coventry Board of Education.  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER  
By: Chairman, C. Trudon at 7:32 p.m.  
Place: Town Hall Annex  
 
II. SALUTE THE FLAG  
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by C. Trudon.  
 
III. AUDIENCE OF CITIZENS  

Beth Hayes, 201 North Farms Road, stated she is here tonight because of the E.O. Smith 
Vocational Agriculture education presentation.  She said, as the parent of a daughter who has a 
passion for animals and horticulture, and was present to fully support continuing to fund the 
education of kids from Coventry at EO Smith.  She said she would also like to request that the 
Board seriously consider increasing the number of students who are allowed to go to this 
program.  She said students who have demonstrated a true passion for pursuing a career in this 
area really deserve the experience afforded at this school.   
 
Audience of citizens was closed.  
 
IV. REPORT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT  

A. Recognition:  CHS Track Tournament Students Thomas Myers and Kelly Myers 
Dr. Bernard recognized Thomas and Kelly Myers for their accomplishments at Conference, 
State, and New England Championship Track and Field meets.  She reviewed their 
accomplishments and presented each of them with a small gift.     

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 1 of 13 



 
The Board members congratulated both students on their accomplishments. 

B. Information: E.O. Smith Presentation 
Dr. Bernard introduced Mr. Pomeroy, Director of Agricultural Education at E.O. Smith.  Mr. 
Pomeroy introduced several students from the Agricultural program.  Mr. Pomeroy spoke about 
the benefits of the program and the fact that he is only accepting three new students to the 
program this year.  Several students spoke about their experiences at E.O. Smith, the awards they 
have received, and the importance of the program for them. The Board thanked them for their 
presentations and asked questions.   

M. Emanuele asked when their National competition is being held.  Mr. Pomeroy answered the 
Nationals are October 18 – 23, 2011 and fourteen students will be attending.  The Board wished 
the group good luck at Nationals.   

C. Trudon asked about the possibility of evening out the number of students allowed into the 
program each year.  Mr. Pomeroy answered it would need to discussed at the Superintendant 
level.  He stated the number of students who graduated this year is the number of students he 
allows into the program the following year.  Dr. Bernard stated all Magnet schools are recruiting 
and Coventry has to balance the ratio of students attending Magnet or other schools and those 
remaining in District.   

M. Malcolm asked what the realistic number of students could be accepted from Coventry into 
the Agricultural program.  Mr. Pomeroy answered ten students per year for a total of forty.  M. 
Malcolm asked if half of the tuition is truly reimbursed by the state.  J. Barrett answered 
Coventry is charged for one half of the tuition costs and the state pays the other half directly to 
E.O. Smith.  Mr. Pomeroy stated Mansfield’s per pupil expenditure is $15,000.  J. Barrett stated 
the tuition cost does not include the transportation cost.   

J. Beausoleil asked if the number of students allowed into the program was increased one year, 
does that mean the town cannot reduce the number of students allowed in the following years.  
Mr. Pomeroy answered that could be discussed at the Superintendant level as well.   

G. Marchand asked how many Coventry students usually apply to the program.  Mr. Pomeroy 
answered usually 10-15 students.  G. Marchand asked Mr. Pomeroy what he looks at to 
determine which students are selected.   Mr. Pomeroy answered the essay on the application, 
interviews with the students, CMT’s, and disciplinary records.  He said he considers any work 
the students have done in agriculture and farming as well as membership in clubs such as 4H.   

C. Trudon asked if fundraising was done to offset the costs of travel to National.  Mr. Pomeroy 
and the students answered they did and they were able to raise enough funds to cover one half of 
the costs for each student.  C. Trudon asked if there are after school agriculture programs that 
Coventry students can join in.  Mr. Pomeroy answered there are some activities that are after 
school, but most of the activities are during school hours.  He stated there is a possibility to open 
some of the activities to Coventry students.  C. Trudon asked for more information on the 
activities after school. 

C. Trudon asked how she can obtain the data and statistics on the agricultural program that were 
e-mailed in February from the Coventry Superintendent to the Mansfield Superintendent.  She 
asked to whom questions should be directed.  Mr. Pomeroy answered that the liaison to the 
agricultural program is J. Barrett.  

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 2 of 13 



J. Barrett asked about the other opportunities available to agricultural students at E.O. Smith.  
Mr. Pomeroy answered there are mechanics team learning how to repair farm and other 
equipment, a public speaking forum for students to learn presentations skills, a marketing and 
business program, food safety and food service, environmental sciences, and a team building 
component.  Mr. Pomeroy also stated there are early college experiences available where 
students could receive up to twelve college credits.   

J. Barrett stated he attend one of the induction ceremonies and was amazed at the philosophy 
they promote.  J. Barrett stated that E.O Smith was fifth in the state for reading scores and that 
speaks to the value of the agricultural experience at the school.  J. Barrett stated that Coventry 
has a budget surplus this year and suggested the Board seriously consider increasing the number 
of students allowed to attend the agricultural program.  He stated Coventry as a town needs to 
promote the younger generation’s interest in farming to replace farmers as they retire. 

The Board members thanked Mr. Pomeroy and the students for their presentation. 
 
C. Information: 2010-2011 Administrator Goal Achievement Update 

1.  Pupil and Staff Support Services – Barbara Trinks 
Ms. Trinks reviewed her goal achievement document (which is attached to these minutes) and 
handed out a data sheet of Anticipated Post-Secondary Outcomes.  She thanked the Board and 
asked if there any questions.   

C. Trudon asked about the BCBA funding that was supported by ARRA stimulus money and 
how it was going to be funded after the ARRA money is gone.  Ms. Trinks answered the funding 
for the BCBA staff person was moved from ARRA to District funding at the end of this year.  
Ms. Trinks stated the BCBA staff person was in the process of obtaining the BCBA certification 
and she hopes Coventry will continue to support the staff person.    M. Malcolm asked if Ms. 
Trinks plans to have a full time BCBA staff member permanently going forward.  Ms. Trinks 
answered yes.  M. Malcolm asked if Ms. Trinks could present information to the Board at future 
meeting on the value of the BCBA and the fiscal responsibilities the position brings.  Ms. Trinks 
indicated she could do that.   

J. Beausoleil asked for more examples of the themes for the department meetings.  Ms. Trinks 
answered IEP procedural review and program review of the IEP’s.  J. Beausoleil asked whether 
the 600 number reported under Goal 6 was students or reports. Ms. Trinks answered it was 
reports and that there are multiple IEP’s for each student.  J. Beausoleil asked for an example of 
an efficiency that was improved in the past year.  Ms. Trinks spoke about the change from the 
multi-part form to a streamlined form and the implementation of a suggested goal.  J. Beausoleil 
asked about metrics on the program, how long each step takes, and accountability to ensure the 
plan developed is being followed.  J. Beausoleil asked if the information could be brought to the 
Board.   Dr. Bernard suggested a creating a flow chart.  M. Malcolm stated documentation is 
collected and reported on students in special education.  Ms. Trinks stated she could share 
information using a case study format.   

M. Emanuele asked how many people attended the workshops.  Ms. Trinks answered 18 
attended the winter workshops and 15 attended the spring workshops.  M. Emanuele asked how 
many students are in the Coventry Alternative Learning Program (CALP).  Ms. Trinks answered 
ten.   

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 3 of 13 



J. Barrett commented that some members of the community were asking him about CALP and he 
asked for information on the program.  Ms. Trinks reviewed the school vs. work schedule for the 
students.  J. Barrett asked why special education students who need more instruction are allowed 
to leave school early to work or volunteer.   Ms. Trinks stated these students were struggling 
with the long school day and the CALP program allows the students to receive the needed 
education and also develop social skills that will help them relate to bosses and co-workers.  G. 
Marchand asked what type of work they were involved in.  Ms. Trinks answered one student was 
doing work in the fire department, one worked at a gas station, and one worked in a car repair 
shop.  Ms. Trinks mentioned some students assisted Human Services in preparing food baskets.   
Dr. Bernard stated the CALP program is IEP driven and she applauds Ms. Trinks for her work on 
this program.  Ms. Trinks stated she is meeting with her staff to discuss changes to the program 
for next year.  J. Barrett asked what changes are being discussed.  Ms. Trinks answered 
revamping the program to correct work avoidance behaviors the students have learned over the 
years.  J. Barrett voiced his concern that there is perception in the community that these students 
are being given a pass.  Ms. Trinks stated the soft skill needed in the work force will help these 
students throughout their careers.  She also stated they will be putting in situation assessments 
next year, more job shadowing, and internships.  J. Barrett asked what follow through is 
occurring with the bosses the students report to.  Ms. Trinks answered phone calls were done 
every one to two weeks.  She also stated more follow up is planned for next year. G. Marchand 
stated this is vocational education.  J. Beausoleil asked how transportation is handled.  Ms. 
Trinks answered some students leave directly from school to work and they are provided 
transportation.  She stated some students go home because of their work schedules.   

G. Marchand stated the Workforce Investment Board may be a resource.  Ms. Trinks stated she 
will look into using it for next year.  M. Emanuele asked what trades the students were interested 
in and why a technical school was not suggested.  Ms. Trinks answered the trades the students 
were interested in varied and included marine mechanics, HVAC, and Culinary.  Dr. Bernard 
stated many colleges are providing adaptive programs.  The Board thanked Ms. Trinks for her 
presentation. 

2.  Central Office – Gregg Blackstone 
G. Blackstone reviewed his goal achievement document (which is attached to these minutes).   
He thanked the Board and asked if there any questions.   

G. Marchand asked if sharing network services with South Windsor is a long term solution and 
what the risk is if South Windsor no longer has the extra capacity.  G. Blackstone answered this 
decision was made by the Town of Coventry and not the Board of Education.  C. Trudon asked 
what the process is for the structural analysis.  G. Blackstone answered the bids will be reviewed 
and a decision made based on lowest comparable bid.  C. Trudon asked if there was real repair 
work.  G. Blackstone answered it will be an assessment and not a repair.  J. Beausoleil 
commended G. Blackstone on a job well done on his first year citing his excellent financial 
reports, collaboration with the community, and handling issues with professionalism and grace 
under fire.  The Board thanked G. Blackstone for his presentation. 

3.  Physical Plant and Facilities – Paul Noel 

Mr. Noel reviewed his goal achievement document (which is attached to these minutes). He 
thanked the Board and asked if there any questions.   

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 4 of 13 



J. Barrett asked about the wind turbine and if Mr. Noel had any idea of the amount of power it 
generates.  Mr. Noel answered he did not know.  G. Marchand asked where the cameras were 
situated at the schools.  Mr. Noel answered the entrances and isolated spots that school 
administrators identified as trouble areas.  G. Marchand asked what the basic safety issues were 
at the schools.  Mr. Noel answered woodshop, some of the technical classrooms, and propane 
tanks.   

Dr. Bernard asked Mr. Noel where he receives his safety direction.  Mr. Noel answered they 
have a safety officer and they use a consultant.  He stated that OSHA has regulations that need to 
be followed as well.  Mr. Noel stated the MSDS sheets are the most time consuming and difficult 
to control so a software program was purchased.  G. Marchand asked if there were any other 
areas of concern.  Mr. Noel answered woodshop because wood dust is a carcinogen and needs to 
be vacuumed.  M. Emanuele asked about cleaning supplies.  Mr. Noel spoke to the new floor 
cleaning supplies that are used.  C. Trudon commended Mr. Noel for the great job he is doing, 
his dedication to the job, and his willingness to come in early and stay late.  The Board thanked 
Mr. Noel for his presentation. 
 
V.  Consent Agenda (one vote for all items) 
      A.  Accept Retirement of Raymond Beaulieu 
      B.  Accept resignation of Stacey Fulton 
 
MOTION:  To approve the consent agenda.  
 By: G. Marchand  Seconded: M. Kortmann  
 Result: Motion passes unanimously.  
 
VI. REPORT OF CHAIRMAN  

Information:  Assign Members (3) to Residency Committee 
 
C. Trudon stated she needs three volunteers for a Residency Committee that should be only a one 
night, one time meeting.  M. Kortmann, M. Emanuele, and G. Marchand volunteered.  C. Trudon 
stated she does not yet have a date.  J. Barrett asked what the Residency Committee would be 
deciding.  Dr. Bernard answered it was an ad hoc committee to determine a student’s residency. 
 
C. Trudon shared information on the status of the roof committee.  She stated the roofing 
replacements have begun, they have hired a clerk-of-the-works, hired a contractor, and supplies 
have arrived.  C. Trudon stated some of the schools may be done early.   
 
C. Trudon thanked G. Marchand to filling in for her at the graduation ceremony.      
 
VII. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

A.  VOTE: Approve Minutes of May 26, 2011  

MOTION:  To Approve the Minutes of the BOE Meeting of Thursday May 26, 2011  
 By: M. Kortmann  Seconded: G. Marchand  

 Discussion:  
C. Trudon asked on page one, last sentence; change the word “then” to “them”.   

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 5 of 13 



J. Beausoleil asked to add information on a discussion to page two related to 
business advertising vs. event notification in relationship to signs.  She would like 
to add a sentence to that effect anywhere on that page.  J. Beausoleil asked on page 
three, second paragraph. add the following sentence “J. Beausoleil stated that since 
it was a school trip, our policy states Board approval is necessary.”  J. Beausoleil 
asked on page four, first paragraph, add the following to end of the paragraph. “The 
Policies discussed include 6100 Elementary and Secondary, 6120 Objectives of the 
Instructional Program, 6141 Curriculum Design, 6156 Instructional Methods, 6161 
Instruction – Textbook Adoption, and 8110 Role of Board and Members.” 

Result: Motion to approve the minutes with noted changes passes 
unanimously.  

 
B.  VOTE:  Approve Minutes of June 2, 2011 

MOTION:  To Approve the Minutes of the BOE Meeting of Thursday, June 2, 2011  
 By: M. Kortmann  Seconded: J. Beausoleil 
 Result: Motion to approve the minutes passes 4-0-3 (J. Barrett, M. Malcolm, and 

G. Marchand abstain) 
 
C.  VOTE: Approve Minutes of June 9, 2011  

MOTION:  To Approve the Minutes of the BOE Meeting of Thursday, June 9, 2011  
 By: M. Kortmann  Seconded: M. Emanuele  

 Discussion:  

 J. Beausoleil asked on page three, add “to see all classes at once” to the end of the 
second sentence.  J. Beausoleil asked on page three, fourth paragraph, add “lessons 
learned from the new schedule” before “including parent comments and concerns”.   

 C. Trudon asked on page four, right after the result, add “C. Trudon supported both 
ideas but wanted a policy to be drawn up before voting in favor of the motion.” 

 Result: Motion to approve the minutes with noted changes passes 6-0-1 (J. 
Barrett abstained.) 

 
IX. NEW BUSINESS  

Information and VOTE: Increase School Lunch Prices – Mr. Blackstone  
G. Blackstone referenced a document in the packet detailing the reasons to increase school lunch 
prices by a dime for the next school year.  He stated the price needs to increase or it could 
jeopardize funding from the state.  G. Blackstone stated that the last price increase was in 2008. 

MOTION:  To raise school lunch prices by a dime for the next school year. 
 By: M. Kortmann  Seconded: J. Beausoleil  
 Result: Motion passes 6-1 (Against: M. Emanuele) 
  
X. REPORT OF BOARD MEMBERS  

A.  Information and Report – Fiscal Committee Meeting of June 6, 2011.  VOTE:  End of 
Year Transfers 

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 6 of 13 



G. Blackstone reviewed the Fiscal management report and end of year spending items report.  He 
stated there was a $74,000 to spend and the Fiscal committee determined a rank of items to 
purchase. 

M. Kortmann stated that transfers will not occur until August when the final budget numbers are 
known.  M. Malcolm mentioned that the Fiscal committee wanted to approve spending for an 
energy audit.  He said they did not include it because the audit would not be completed in this 
fiscal year.   

J. Barrett asked what the curriculum need is for the mobile computer lab.  C. Trudon answered 
classes use the lab for research.  J. Beausoleil stated the rolling computer lab was placed in the 
budget last year and was cut.  She also stated the rolling computer lab is beneficial for classroom 
time management and occasional classroom use.    

M. Emanuele asked if this was the final rank.  C. Trudon answered yes.  M. Malcolm stated if the 
surplus is over $100,000 the funds over that limit will be sent back to the town.  C. Trudon stated 
that CIRMA money would also be sent back to the town.  

MOTION:  To table end of year transfers until August. 
 By: M. Kortmann  Seconded: J. Beausoleil  

Discussion: 

J. Barrett asked if the Fiscal committee was asking for a consensus from the Board 
for the budget surplus.  G. Blackstone answered the PO’s were created but have not 
been sent.  He stated they will not be sent until budget numbers are confirmed.  J. 
Barrett asked if the Board could review the spending items one more time before 
the PO’s are released.  He stated he wanted the Board to vote on the rank and 
spending items.  M. Malcolm stated he disagrees with J. Barrtett that a vote needs to 
occur before transfers are done.      

Result: Motion passes 6-1 (Against: J. Barrett) 
 
B.  Information and Report – Policy Committee  
J. Beausoleil reviewed the work the Policy committee has done regarding curriculum policies.  
She stated the committee is working toward creating a three tiered approach.  J. Beausoleil stated 
many of these policies have not been updated since 2000.  J. Beausoleil reviewed the discussion 
the committee had on the new Medication Administration Policy.   

J. Barrett asked if the intent of the Policy committee was to create a liaison to the Board and 
abdicate the Board’s authority to approve curriculum to teachers.  J. Beausoleil suggested J. 
Barrett review the minutes from the Policy meeting and e-mail his concerns to her or any 
member of the Policy committee.  M. Emanuele stated the curriculum policies were outdated and 
no longer made sense.   M. Malcolm asked how the curriculum is presented to the Board.  M. 
Emanuele answered a District committee liaison position, a Board committee member, or a 
curriculum committee.  She said it will be up to the Board to decide which option to do and we 
would continue with the district curriculum committee.  She stated this would allow discussion 
and comments from the Board to be raised. J. Barrett asked that any new courses be brought to 
the Board before being approved.  J. Beausoleil answered that is an item that can be discussed 
when that policy is warned to the Board.   
 

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 7 of 13 



Other Report of Board Members: 

J. Barrett asked about the RFP for the Grammer school ceiling tiles and lighting that is currently 
on the web site.  He wants to know where the money for this project is coming from.  G. 
Blackstone answered that was included in a CIP from last year and was not a Board expense.   
 
C. Trudon asked J. Barrett to speak with Mr. Pomeroy and obtain answers to the questions that 
were sent regarding the Agricultural program.  J. Barrett answered he would contact Mr. 
Pomeroy. 
 
G. Marchand commended the work done on the graduation ceremony.  He mentioned the 
standing ovation for Dr. Bernard that occurred during the ceremony.  The Board agreed the 
graduation ceremony was nice.  
 
X.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION:  To adjourn the Board meeting at 10:50 p.m.  
 By: J. Barrett  Seconded: J. Beausoleil  
 Result: Motion passes unanimously.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted:  
 
 
__________________________  
Terri Lessard  
Subcommittee Clerk  
 
 
July 14, 2011 
Approved

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 8 of 13 



Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 9 of 13 



Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 10 of 13 



Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 11 of 13 



Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 12 of 13 



 
 

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of June 30, 2011 – Page 13 of 13 


